Approved
Bellbrook-Sugarcreek Merger Study Commission Megtin
Minutes

September 2, 2009

1. The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM by Mike ShaniCl@irperson of
the Merger Study Commission.

2. Mr. Shank called the roll with Commission members Tom Eyé&ht Sam Staley,
Bill Berry, Howard Ackerman, Ron Folkerth, Charlie Schwegmammria
Hellmann, and Joan Gallagher present. Linda Hummel was not preseatrived
shortly after the meeting started.

3. Others present were Jim Tharpe, Harold Rogers, Scott Biark,Schlagheck,
Barry Tiffany, Denny Bennett and Jeremy Kelley.

4. The minutes from the August 5, 2009 meeting had been circaladesere
presented for approval. Mr. Shank stated that the word goggleddnst googled
appeared but other than that there was no discussion. Mrs. Galtagthea
motion to approve the minutes with Mr. Frantz seconding the motibrotd yes
and the motion passes unanimously.

5. Barry Tiffany made a presentation on the Vulnerability of Annexation f
Sugarcreek Township. Essentially the presentation review#tegroperties in
the Township with their owners that had a potential of being annexed byibgrder
cities such as Kettering, Centerville, Beavercreek, Xand Bellbrook. Mr
Tiffany illustrated locations of the properties with maps which nieasier to
assess the vulnerability of each property.



Mr Tiffany noted an important fact that in cases where a govamhantity such
as schools, park districts, cities or townships propertiesamtiguous with these
vulnerable properties, then the property beyond the government ergitgisea
vulnerable for annexation. Mr Tiffany stated that certain Zoniagurations in the
Ohio Revised Code were created to prevent townships from buying tyraper
protect against annexation by cities.

In discussion it was also noted by Mr Tiffany that Bellbrook had thenpaté¢o
annex Sugarcreek Township property. Mrs. Gallagher commenteithrtbagh

the years under the leadership of Mayor Mary Graves, that Bellbesplkcted the
borders of Sugarcreek Township. There had been several instdmaes w
developers, who were not satisfied with the Sugarcreek Townsiaig Bf
Zoning's decisions approached Bellbrook asking for annexation. Thessteque
were met with the statement that Bellbrook wasn't interdstadnexing
Sugarcreek Township property.

. The agenda for the September meeting included a discussionmktita Report
from the Mercer Group, Inc. Jim Mercer was tasked to sencefwat to Co-
chairperson Joan Gallagher for distribution to the Commission theewadefore
the meeting. Mr Mercer was also to attend the meetihgortunately the Mercer
Group sent a Progress Report rather than the anticipated IntepontR As a
result Mrs. Gallagher stated that she didn’t feel thereavasison to spend money
on Mr. Mercer traveling to the meeting to discuss why theenealnterim

Report.

Mr. Shank stated that a unilateral decision made by Mrsa@wadl to tell Mr.
Mercer not to come to the meeting was unacceptable. Thegai@stons that he
had for him. He added that to say he is unhappy is an understaternsent! M
Hummel stated that he could be called, but Mr. Shank statelddlsdtould be at
the meeting. He said that he never received an e mailgstdt. Mercer shouldn’t
come to the meeting and that he works for the Commission andasraifde to
the Commission, not just one person. Mrs. Gallagher statechéhaesat Mr.
Mercer an e mail and asked that the Interim Report be sehesmwald distribute
it to the Commissioners. He assured her that would occur. Wheacsheed the



report, she sent it to everyone then e mailed Mr. Tiffany andkhlagheck and
stated that it didn’t look like an Interim Report but a ProgRessort instead. She
said that she didn’t get a revised schedule and an updated repdhaidaly
before the meeting. She noted that she is also not happy that MerMeln’t
inform her earlier that she wasn’t going to get an InteriqpdRe If he would have
told her that, then the Commission would have had time to do somdiining.
Staley commented that since Mr. Shank and Mrs. Gallagh&@amohairs, he
would like to see them talking to each other on a more regudas. ba

. At this point there was concern about Mercer’s ability to prodire Tiffany
stated that Mercer has taken a lot of information from thebysite, but that there
was still a lot of work to be done on an analysis. There has Hdeénfagathering
of information, but it still has to be put together. Mrs. Hellmasked if there is
anything that can be done by the Commissioners to help things maare st
Tiffany stated that he didn’t think that there was. Dr. Sarteptsked Mr.

Tiffany and Mr. Schlagheck if they felt that the percentagegook completed
have been embellished ? Mr. Schlagheck stated that somepafrtentages
probably have been, by what he knows has been done. He stated thaetti®goll
percentage is probably accurate because they have asked for hundogds if
thousands of pages of documents. Mrs. Hellmann asked where theyitere
conducting interviews. Mr. Schlagheck stated that Mr. Menesrsent e mail
guestionnaires to all department heads in Bellbrook and they altésp@nded,
but he has not verbally spoken to anyone in the Bellbrook Service Departm
Mrs. Hellmann stated that if Mr. Mercer was doing the ingwvs himself and was
having trouble getting them completed, he needed to delegatddlsammeone
else.

Mr. Tiffany stated that he has talked to Tom Doherty, who is hantlimg
financial models several times and is very of confident innfioemation that he
will generate. Mr. Schlagheck stated that he has seen thetloooidels and there
is a lot of work to be done to show what a merger would lookchkebining the
models of the City and the Township.



Mr. Schwegman stated that he was concerned about Mercer’s abpitgduce
something of value for next month and that Mr. Mercer needed torsxiat
month’s meeting regardless of his progress. He also wantee within a week
or so, an outline of the Interim Report that’s due in three wetkstated that by
seeing an outline it will be obvious the kind of report he will reavé the progress
that has been made. Mrs. Hellmann stated that if he has “bffterore than he
can chew”; he needs to delegate someone to the project thatishrttie
interviews and get that information collected. She said thextvieivs were
supposed to be completed in week 4, and it is now past that. Becdhaepart
not being completed, the financials can’t be done. Mrs. Galldghed about the
revised schedule of Mercer’s which incorrectly says that thegéieCommission
recently asked for assistance with areas most susceptivlaeggadion. Mrs.
Gallagher stated that since Mr. Tiffany had given the presemt@bout the same
topic,that could be eliminated. Ms. Hummel stated that the Costoney's
probably have different ideas of what the Interim Report should inciundie,
guestioned how they can make sure they get the information they kiregléar.
Mr. Schwegman brings up the fact that it's possible that thdygaitilthe Interim
Report and it's not what the Commissioners were expecting.dteddhat this is
why they need an outline to have an idea of where they are. Mreidtelimade
the comment that if Mercer knows now that things are not goingdélyethey
expect, at least they will have time to get on target by tield@r meeting.

. Mr. Tiffany asked what is the Commission’s expectation ofritexim Report?
He stated that it seems that the Commission is looking forith# answers on an
interim basis. He agreed that it is a good idea to find out Mkater is going to
provide in October. Then if it is not what they are expecting, thrarission can
tell him they want and find out when it will be available. Mrh®egman
suggested they all look at the original statement of work andelé@dhat will

give them the information they want.

Mrs. Hellmann stated that she would like to see that the condwdtinterviews

is done and that he interviewed the people whom he outlined, such asatie R
Police, and Fire Departments on the City and Township. Mr. Tiffeatgdthat in
the Interim Report, he wants to see that everyone was inteajeampiled
numbers, reviewed operations and indications where there may be prodheims



advantages. Mrs. Hellmann asked that as far as the conductiigrefews, is
Mr. Mercer waiting for any information or documents from the TowmshiCity
which is holding the process-up, and is it documented?

Dr. Staley stated that he is looking for more than just aninmi@eport. That
looking at the percentages, he feels that they should be at th@fpmaking a
rough outline of where things are. He thinks that they should &ssaxhere they
are weak, and how they are going to complete the project. idedatirat Mr.
Mercer should be at the October meeting and a clear messalgetode sent that
they must meet the benchmarks on time considering the tinnaingsthe
Commission has. Mrs. Gallagher agreed with Mr. Staley’sncemt and adds that
the reason they chose the Mercer Group was because of their ex@ertishat
they have conducted projects like these previously.

Mr. Berry added that there should be definite red or green ftatgsvahere they
are at after the October meeting. Mrs. Gallagher satdlibagroup from
University of Toledo had trouble getting information completed fort@wille
and that this is nothing new in this area of work. Mrs. Hellnasked Mr.
Schlagheck when he was in Centerville and dealing with the tsitivef Toledo
if they had a lot of “slippage”. He responded that they didn’'t havértieeframe
issue there, but it was a longer process than anticipated MagBeck stated that
Mr. Mercer had most of the information he needed from Bellbrookyéeded to
schedule meetings with Sugarcreek department heads.

Ms. Hummel suggested that Mr. Tiffany let Mr. Mercer krexactly what it is
they are expecting since he is in contact with him. Dr. Stakye the comment
that any slip in the time line they were given will have a sulistl impact.
Therefore as a Commission it is very important to stay on thénberks. Mr.
Ackerman makes the recommendation that the two Co-chairsggthér with
Mr. Tiffany and Mr. Schlagheck. Mr. Tiffany responded by suggeshiagan e
mail be drafted to Mr. Mercer and forwarded to the Co-chairsstatds exactly
what they expect at the October meeting. Mr. Schwegman disaggrdedade the
comment he feels it’s time to “smoke them out”. He wamtseke a request for an
outline of the Interim Report.



Mr. Folkerth added that everyone has great ideas, but thlsasrang curve, and
suggests that having Mr. Mercer at the meetings would besimice there have
been many good ideas at the meeting. He also said that a gihealeis an
option, but added that they are missing-out by not having them at gdimgae

Mr. Berry commented on the fact that Mercer is not on scheduietéoviews
and asked if there are any appointments scheduled for the next tks?wisk.
Frantz asked how many days Mr. Mercer has been in town ? Nanyistated
that he has been here two days. Mr. Frantz then stated thistektrer has until
September 18to finish interviews since there is a new timeline. Marfz raised
the question that since there is a new revised plan is it somelat needs a
vote? He feels that because of some of the clerical errting inew timeline, is it
something he can even believe? Mr. Schwegman added that he thinks

Jim Mercer is testing us.

Mr. Shank summarized an Action Plan. Mr. Tiffany or Mr Schéagk will draft a
potential e mail for Mr. Mercer. It will then be forwardedie Co-chairs for
review. The Mercer response will be e mailed to the Comoms#dr. Tiffany
asked to clarify what they are expecting. Mr. Schwegman staaethé would like
financial information of both entities, of all revenues, and expestsmasn with
initial thoughts where it appears savings and expenses could izeaealso, if
the Fire Departments were merged, would that be a plus or mirus$hank
added that if extra meetings are necessary, that can be donehwidtan
commented that perhaps Mr. Mercer should be in town finishing intes\aed
“wrapping things up”.

. The next topic on the agenda was the approval of payment of invbinegs. was
a $50.00 invoice from the transcriber from the August 5, 2009 ngetbigh Mrs.
Gallagher approved. Mrs. Gallagher made 21 copies of the agerttia foeeting.



10. Meeting schedule-October 7, November 4, December 2. Morenggeatay be
added if necessary.

11. Web page reminder. Mrs. Hummel states that there havanbegrestions on the
web page.

12. Additions to the agenda. Mrs. Gallagher added that SugaiToeenship trustees
approved the decision to put the Limited Home Rule on the Novembet. ball

13. There was no public comment

14. Dr Staley made a motion to adjourn. Mr. Folkerth seconded the mbhien.
motion passed unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 9:05PM



